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Subject:
Staff Response to Order Directing Filing

Date:
June 14, 2002

On June 12, 2002, the Missouri Public Service Commission (Commission) issued an Order Directing Filing in Case No. TO-2002-481.  The Order directed the Telecommunications Department Staff (Staff) to file suggestions explaining the reasons for the following quotation contained in its April 26, 2002 Memorandum.  “Staff requests the Commission order Verizon to assign telephone numbers to Kanakuk in two blocks of 1,000 sequential telephone numbers.”  

Answer to Order

Staff has reviewed Verizon’s filing and agrees that Verizon has demonstrated a verifiable   need for numbering resources to satisfy Kanakuk’s request given that Kanakuk’s new telephone system requires four blocks of 500 consecutive numbers.  In its March 4, 2002 letter to Verizon, Kanakuk specifically requested its preference for number assignment as follows:


417-NXX-2000 through 417-NXX-2499 (500 consecutive numbers)


417-NXX-3000 through 417-NXX-3499 (500 consecutive numbers)


417-NXX-4000 through 417-NXX-4499 (500 consecutive numbers)


417-NXX-5000 through 417-NXX-5499 (500 consecutive numbers)

In the 417 Area Code, Verizon receives numbers in blocks of 10,000.  If Kanakuk were allowed to receive numbers in the fashion it requested, the rest of the four 1,000 blocks of numbers would be contaminated.  Pooling is scheduled to begin in the 417 Area Code in the third quarter 2003.  Under pooling, numbers will be assigned to carriers in blocks of 1,000.  Carriers will be required to return uncontaminated blocks of 1,000 numbers.  Therefore, when pooling is set in place, Verizon would not be able to donate the contaminated 1,000 blocks back to the pool.  As noted below, the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) has recognized that sequential numbering assignments will adequately protect 1,000 blocks from unnecessary contamination and therefore delegated authority to the Commission to require sequential number assignments.  For this reason, Staff requested the Commission order Verizon to assign telephone numbers to Kanakuk in two blocks of 1,000 sequential telephone numbers.  


Background

The FCC, in its July 2000 Order granting Missouri various numbering authorities, states: “Several state commissions request the authority to: (1) order the return of (reclaim) unused and reserved NXX codes; (2) monitor the use of numbering resources through the use of mandatory reporting requirements and number utilization forecasting; (3) require sequential number assignments; (4) require carriers to prove facilities readiness prior to obtaining numbering resources in an area; and (5) set and establish number assignment and NXX code allocation standards (including the requirement that carriers meet certain fill rates prior to obtaining additional numbering resources).” 
 (Emphasis Added).  In that same order the FCC granted Delegated Authority to the Missouri Commission to do all items listed above except number 4.

In its Numbering Resource Order, the FCC states: “We adopt a flexible requirement which mandates that carriers first assign all available telephone numbers within an opened thousands-block before opening another thousands-block, unless the available numbers in the opened thousands-block are not sufficient to meet a customer request.  We note that this requirement applies to a carriers existing numbering resources as well as any new numbering resources it obtains in the future.  We believe that such a requirement will adequately protect clean thousands-blocks from unnecessary contamination.  We believe that this requirement will improve carrier efficiency in utilizing numbering resources, while maintaining carrier flexibility in meeting customer demand.  We also acknowledge that this requirement has the potential to forestall other thousands-blocks from becoming contaminated – and thus ineligible for possible donation to a pool.  We also find that sequential number assignment may improve carrier efficiency in utilizing numbering resources, regardless of whether pooling is implemented.”
  

Recommendation

NANPA denied Verizon’s request for 2,000 telephone numbers because the months to exhaust forecast data exceeded 6 months.  However, Verizon has demonstrated a verifiable need for additional numbers to meet a specific customer request because the 6,212 assignable telephone numbers are not sequential.  
 Also, Verizon requested expedited treatment because  Kanakuk Kamps will not be able to install its new telephone system until the request for additional numbers is approved by the Commission.  Staff again recommends approval of the proposed request for additional numbering resources.  Staff again further recommends the Commission order Verizon to assign telephone numbers to Kanakuk in two blocks of 1,000 sequential telephone numbers.  Staff is unaware of any other filing that may affect or be affected by this filing.
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